### <u>Minutes</u>

### MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE



### 3 March 2016

### Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), Peter Curling, Jazz Dhillon, Janet Duncan (Labour Lead), Henry Higgins, John Morgan, Brian Stead, David Yarrow and Roy Chamdal (as substitute)
	LBH Officers Present: James Rodger (Head of Planning and Enforcementre), Mandip Malhotra (Interim Major Applications Manager), Tim Brown (Legal Advisor), Syed Shah (Highways Officer) and Alex Quayle (Democratic Services Officer)
44.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Edwards, who was substituted by Cllr Chamdal.
45.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	Cllrs Curling, Morgan, and Yarrow declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 11 and left the meeting for the duration of the item.
46.	TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD 5 JANUARY 2016 AND 20 JANUARY 2016 (Agenda Item 3)
	Minutes of the meetings held 5 January 2016 and 20 January 2016 were agreed.
47.	MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 4)
	None.
48.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)
	It was confirmed that all business was Part I and to be considered in public.
49.	LAND SOUTH HOLLOWAY LANE/NORTH HARMONDSWORTH LANE, HOLLOWAY LANE, HARMONDSWORTH - 1354/APP/2015/4607 (Agenda Item 6)
	Officers introduced the application, and noted the addendum.
	A petitioner spoke in objection to the application, and with the permission of

the Chairman circulated to the committee images and evidence to support his argument. The petitioner raised the following points:

- Green fields surround Harmondsworth on all sides, and current usage of land had ensured that it can be returned to grade 1 farm land once used.
- The slope of the hill and height of the panels suggest a total height of 5.5 metres.
- The applicant has suggested that sheep can graze around the solar panels, but research by Reading University has suggested that this is not financially viable.
- Government ministers have stated that they wish to see more land used for farming, and not used for development. The subsidy for solar panels on farmland has been scrapped.
- This application has even more solar panels than a previously rejected application.

A representative of the applicant spoke in support of the application, and raised the following points:

- Sites are designed for sheep grazing under panels, and to encourage biodiversity.
- The site would supply much needed green energy, and local authorities are required to contribute to targets for carbon reduction.
- The site is already screened by hedgerows and not generally visible or damaging to the view of the surrounding area.
- A site north of Holloway Lane was recently rejected, but this was very different, and there is a national precedent for approving developments of this sort.
- The project is totally reversible and will not result in the permanent loss of farm land.
- A search has been made for other viable sites in the area, and none have been found to be suitable. Hillingdon has very few viable locations for a solar farm.
- Financial contributions to local residents groups have been offered.

In response to a member question regarding the specifics of the financial contributions, the representative of the applicant replied that these had not been discussed in detail with residents but could take the form of community benefits depending on what the community requested. Examples had in the past included one-off payments, yearly payments, and solar panels installed on community centre roofs. Initial discussions with residents had centred on paying for CCTV.

A member requested clarification of the suitability of the land for grazing, to which the applicant responded that the high elevation of the land would allow grass to grow to feed sheep, and the company founder had put sheep on a Cambridgeshire solar farm.

Members discussed building on farm land, and whether this was appropriate. Officers contributed that appeals over refused applications had previously been rejected by the inspector on green belt land, and this application was in an area of high agricultural value.

Multiple Members stated that they wanted to encourage sustainable energy

generation, but doing so on good agricultural land created a conflict.

The motion for refusal was moved, seconded and upon being put to a vote was unanimously agreed.

#### RESOLVED:

- that the application was refused.

## 50. TEMPORARY CAR PARK SITE, SEALAND ROAD, HEATHROW AIRPORT - 65688/APP/2016/94 (Agenda Item 9)

Officers introduced the report, noted the addendum and that the item had been moved in the order due to the submission of petition. It was noted that the car park would be a permanent building, on land that was currently a temporary, informal car park. This represented a reduction in the total land used for parking, but not a net increase in parking space. Once the multistorey was in place, it was planned to remove the informal surface parking. As this was tenanted land it fell outside of the Heathrow parking cap.

A petitioner spoke in support of the application, and raised the following points:

- 280 spaces of the car park would be for Gate Gourmet, and the remaining for British Airways. The site owner are obliged to provide spaces for Gate Gourmet, but are permitted additional functions.
- The site had a previous approved application for a hotel and 2 restaurants which did not come to fruition.
- A late objection by Gate Gourmet was believed by the petitioner to be a spoiling tactic.

In response to a member question requesting clarification of what the Heathrow parking cap applied to, the petitioner responded that this was largely airline passengers, and the cap did not include ancillary parking for staff. In this instance, the tenanted parking for a specific employer was outside the cap.

The Chairman confirmed that a letter of objection submitted by Gate Gourmet had been circulated to Members of the Committee on 1 March 2016.

Officers confirmed that there was no impact on the Heathrow parking cap, and that the application had been judged to have no adverse impact on the highway. It was also noted that the current application was only for a redistribution of current parking, in the hope that it be quickly approved.

A member raised a concern that the disabled parking was stated to cover 5% of the total spaces (50 of 1,000), but only 28 could be identified. Officers responded that the top deck of the car park was not covered by parking spaces yet, and that there was a condition for the applicant to provide 5%. In response, the Member requested that a specific number of disabled parking bays was made a condition of the application.

The motion for approval was moved, seconded and upon being put to a vote was unanimously agreed.

#### RESOLVED:

 That the application was approved, subject to the addendum and change to Condition 3 to state actual number of disabled spaces required.

## 51. **UNIT 4, 1 UXBRIDGE ROAD, HAYES - 1911/APP/2015/3211** (Agenda Item 7)

#### RESOLVED:

- That the application was withdrawn.

# 52. FORMER ROYAL BRITISH LEGION CLUB, SIPSON ROAD, WEST DRAYTON - 829/APP/2015/4725 (Agenda Item 8)

Officers introduced the report and noted the addendum. The application had previously been refused due to scale and the colour scheme, but this application was one storey less and had a more neutral exterior. The application also entailed payment of a £20,000 Travel Plan bond.

A Member referenced their concerns about the earlier application, and stated that the new plans addressed this. Another Member agreed, and pointed out that it was now very similar to neighbouring buildings.

The motion for approval was moved, seconded and upon being put to a vote was unanimously agreed.

#### RESOLVED:

That the application was approved.

# 53. ST ANDREW'S PARK, HILLINGDON ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 585/APP/2015/4494 (Agenda Item 10)

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the application.

The motion for approval was moved, seconded and upon being put to a vote was unanimously agreed.

#### RESOLVED:

That the application was approved.

# 54. FASSNIDGE MEMORIAL HALL - R/O HIGH STREET, UXBRIDGE - 12156/APP/2015/4166 (Agenda Item 11)

Cllrs Curling, Morgan, and Yarrow declared a non-pecuniary interest and left the meeting for the duration of the item.

Officers introduced the report and noted the addendum. Members were informed that there was very little difference between this and a previous application, except for the loss of larger units for an increase in affordable housing.

Members requested clarifications over visibility into facing rooms and light, to which officers responded that the building was compliant with regulation.

A Member commented that there were 5 disabled units, but only 2 disabled parking bays. Officers clarified that as the site was in a central area it was assessed that shared rather than allocated parking bays would suffice. Though members were dissatisfied with this aspect of the building, the Highways officer advised that there was no correlation between disabled people and car requirements.

The motion for approval was moved, seconded and upon being put to a vote was unanimously agreed.

#### RESOLVED:

That the application was approved.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.10 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Alex Quayle on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.